INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF WEST CHICAGO, DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY, WEST
CHICAGO LIBRARY DISTRICT, WEST CHICAGO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT,
WEST CHICAGO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 33, COMMUNITY HIGH
SCHOOL DISTRICT 94, WEST CHICAGO PARK DISTRICT AND BALL
HORTICULTURAL COMPANY IN REGARD TO A PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT
RELATIVE TO THE REDEVELOPMENT OF THE BALL HORTICULTURAL
COMPANY PROPERTY

This INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this

day of , 2018 (“Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF

WEST CHICAGO, an lllinois home rule municipal corporation (“CITY”), the DUPAGE
AIRPORT AUTHORITY, an lllinois airport authority (“AIRPORT"), the WEST CHICAGO
LIBRARY DISTRICT, an lllinois library district (‘LIBRARY”), the WEST CHICAGO FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, an lllinois fire protection district (“FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT"), the WEST CHICAGO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 33, an lllinois
school district (‘ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT"), the COMMUNITY HIGH
SCHOOL DISTRICT 94, an lllinois school district (‘HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT"), the
WEST CHICAGO PARK DISTRICT, an lllinois park district (‘PARK DISTRICT"), and
BALL HORTICULTURAL COMPANY, an lllinois corporation (“DEVELOPER”). The
CITY, the AIRPORT, the LIBRARY, the FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, the
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, the HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT, the PARK
DISTRICT, and the DEVELOPER are sometimes individually referred to herein as a
“Party” and collectively referred to as the “Parties.”

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, DEVELOPER is a global leader in the horticulture industry; and

WHEREAS, DEVELOPER owns approximately 59 acres of land located at 622

397217 2 1



Town Road, West Chicago, lllinois, with said property being legally described on

EXHIBIT A-1, attached hereto and made part hereof, and depicted on EXHIBIT A-2,

attached hereto and made part hereof (“Subject Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Subject Property serves as DEVELOPER's international
headquarters, and is also improved with horticultural facilities including offices, an
operations center, greenhouses, a Helix facility, and other improvements; and

WHEREAS, DEVELOPER desires to continue its presence in the City of West
Chicago, to expand upon its use of the Subject Property and to continue to invest in its
global business in the City of West Chicago; and

WHEREAS, specifically, Developer desires to substantially redevelop the Subject
Property so as to expand and replace existing facilities and improvements, and
construct an advanced research and development facility as depicted and described in

EXHIBITS B-1 and B-2, respectively, attached hereto and a part hereof (together, the

“Redevelopment Project”); and

WHEREAS, DEVELOPER has budgeted the cost of the Redevelopment Project
in an amount no less than Twenty Million ($20,000,000.00) Dollars; and

WHEREAS, in order to induce the DEVELOPER to proceed with the
Redevelopment Project, the CITY, the AIRPORT, the LIBRARY, the FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT, the ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, the HIGH
SCHOOL DISTRICT, and the PARK DISTRICT (collectively the “UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT”) agree to provide the DEVELOPER with a partial real estate tax
abatement in regard to certain of the real estate taxes assessed by the UNITS OF

GOVERNMENT against the Subject Property (“Tax Abatement”); and

397217_2 2



WHEREAS, the Tax Abatement will provide a real estate tax abatement from the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT to the DEVELOPER pursuant to 35 ILCS 200/18-165
(“Abatement Law”); and

WHEREAS, the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT have agreed to provide the Tax
Abatement to the DEVELOPER, pursuant to the terms and conditions as set forth in this
Agreement, provided the DEVELOPER agrees to refrain from taking any actions, either
directly or indirectly, to lower the equalized assessed valuation of the Subject Property,
including the Redevelopment Project located thereon, for a period of fifteen (15) years
after the Project commences operation, below those equalized assessed valuations as
set forth on EXHIBIT C, attached hereto and made part hereof (“Anticipated Assessed
Values”); and

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER is in agreement with the restriction set forth
above, relative to refraining from taking any actions, either directly or indirectly, to lower
the equalized assessed valuation of the Subject Property below the Anticipated
Assessed Values for the Subject Property; and

WHEREAS, by providing the Tax Abatement, in exchange for the DEVELOPER
agreeing to refrain from taking any actions, either directly or indirectly, to lower the
equalized assessed valuation of the Subject Property below the Anticipated Assessed
Values for the Subject Property, the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT will induce the
DEVELOPER to cause the Project to be constructed and operated, which the UNITS
OF GOVERNMENT anticipate will provide future financial benefits for the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT; and

WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 lllinois Constitution, 5 ILCS 220/1

397217_2 3



et seq., the Abatement Law, and the CITY’S home rule powers provide the authority for

this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the Parties to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the mutual covenants

and agreements contained herein, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

I INCORPORATION OF PREAMBLES. The preambles hereto, as set forth

above, are incorporated herein by reference and are made part hereof.

2. DEVELOPER CONDITIONS. The DEVELOPER'S right to receive the Tax

Abatement under this Agreement is expressly conditioned upon the satisfaction

by the DEVELOPER, or the DEVELOPER'’s tenant on the Subject Property, of

the following conditions. The DEVELOPER, or the DEVELOPER'’s tenant on the

Subject Property, shall:

A.

397217_2

Retain ownership or control over the Subject Property during the term of
this Agreement;

Construct and operate the Redevelopment Project on the Subject Property
substantially in accordance with EXHIBITS B-1 and B-2;

Obtain certificates of occupancy, or final approvals, for the
Redevelopment Project from all governmental entities having jurisdiction
over the design and construction of the Redevelopment Project, on or
before December 31, 2021. The date the DEVELOPER receives the last
of the certificates of occupancy or final approvals for the Redevelopment
Project from all governmental entities having jurisdiction over the design
and construction of the Project shall be the “Commencement Date.” The
DEVELOPER shall notify each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT of the
Commencement Date within fourteen (14) days after the Commencement
Date has occurred. If the Redevelopment Project is substantially
completed on or before December 31, 2021, but final certificates of
occupancy have not yet been issued, the deadline for obtaining
certificates of occupancy shall be extended as reasonably necessary to
afford the Parties their respective benefits under this Agreement

Comply with the real estate tax obligations set forth in Section 4. below;



and

E. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, if the
DEVELOPER, or the DEVELOPER's tenant on the Subject Property, fails
to meet any of its obligations in Sections 2.A., 2.B., or 2.C. of this
Agreement, the Agreement shall be terminated and be null and void.

3.  REAL ESTATE TAX ABATEMENT.

A. Subject to the DEVELOPER, or the DEVELOPER'’s tenant on the Subject
Property, being in full compliance with Section 2. above, and Section 4.A.
below, the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT shall provide the DEVELOPER with
the Tax Abatement pursuant to the Abatement Law, relative to the real
estate taxes assessed against the Subject Property, including the
Redevelopment Project located thereon, with said Tax Abatement being:

1. For a maximum of ten (10) years, beginning with the real estate
taxes levied on the Subject Property, including the Redevelopment
Project located thereon, for the full calendar year after the calendar
year in which the Commencement Date occurs, which real estate
taxes are payable in the year thereafter, even if the full amount
referenced in Subsection 3.A.2. below has not been abated;

2. Limited to a total cumulative amount from the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT combined of Four Million and No/100 Dollars
($4,000,000.00), even if the Tax Abatement has not occurred for the
full ten (10) year period referenced in Subsection 3.A.1. above;

3. Limited to Fifty Percent (60%) of the real estate taxes to be received
by the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT from the Subject Property,
including the Redevelopment Project located thereon, exclusive of
real estate taxes received to satisfy any debt service tax levy of
general applicability to all property within any one or more of the
respective UNITS OF GOVERNMENT, in any given year; and

4. Limited by excluding amounts levied by each of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT for debt service, and limited in the Abatement Law,
and any amendments thereto after the Effective Date.

Within sixty (60) days of the Commencement Date, each of the UNITS OF

397217_2 5



397217_2

GOVERNMENT shall adopt the ordinance, or resolution, attached hereto
as EXHIBIT D and made a part hereof (“Abatement Ordinance /
Resolution”), and send a certified copy of the Abatement Ordinance /
Resolution to the DuPage County Clerk (“Clerk”), with such changes to the
Abatement Ordinance / Resolution being made to tailor the Abatement
Ordinance / Resolution to the specific ordinance, or resolution, form
requirements of each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT, and after updating
the current P.LN.s and legal description(s) for the Subject Property,
including the Redevelopment Project located thereon, if any. The Parties
acknowledge that under the Abatement Law, the Clerk administers the Tax
Abatement. The Parties acknowledge that as of the Effective Date, the
process for administering the Tax Abatement as is described in EXHIBIT E,
attached hereto and made a part hereof, and that the process described in
EXHIBIT E may change after the Effective Date. If the process for
administering the Tax Abatement as described in EXHIBIT E is changed
after the Effective Date, the Parties shall update EXHIBIT E to reflect the
new process, which update may occur upon agreement of the chief
administrative officers of each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT and the
DEVELOPER. The Parties shall cooperate with one another, and the
Clerk, in administering the Tax Abatement. Upon a reasonable request of
the Clerk, or any other Party, the Parties shall timely respond to requests
for information and documents related to the Tax Abatement, and the

Parties shall take all reasonable steps in a timely manner needed to



397217_2

administer the Tax Abatement consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

During the term of this Agreement, if the DEVELOPER or its tenant
ceases operating the Project on the Subject Property, or if the
DEVELOPER breaches any of its obligations under Section 4.A., the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT shall provide written notice of such cessation
(a “Default Notice”) to the DEVELOPER. If the DEVELOPER does not
recommence operation of the Redevelopment Project within thirty (30)
days of the DEVELOPER’s receipt of a Default Notice, or if the
DEVELOPER does not cure the breach of its obligations under Section
4. A.within thirty (30) days of the DEVELOPER’s receipt of a Default
Notice, then the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT may elect, by written notice
to the DEVELOPER delivered following such thirty (30) day period, to
terminate this Agreement (a “Termination”), whereupon the DEVELOPER
shall reimburse the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT the Tax Abatement as
follows:

1. If a Termination occurs within the first five (5) years after the
Commencement Date, the DEVELOPER shall pay each of the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT its pro rata amount of Seventy Five
Percent (75%) of the Tax Abatement realized by the DEVELOPER;
or

2. If a Termination occurs within the second five (5) years after the
Commencement Date, the DEVELOPER shall pay each of the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT its pro rata amount of Fifty Percent
(50%) of the Tax Abatement realized by the DEVELOPER.

The DEVELOPER’s reimbursement obligations herein shall survive, and
be binding upon the DEVELOPER, regardless of the termination or

expiration of this Agreement, untii ten (10) years after the



Commencement Date. The DEVELOPER shall reimburse the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT within thirty (30) days of a written demand from the

UNITS OF GOVERNMENT for such reimbursement.

4. REAL ESTATE TAX OBLIGATIONS OF THE DEVELOPER.

A.

397217_2

The DEVELOPER agrees to pay, or cause to be paid, all general and
special real estate taxes levied against its respective interest in the
Subject Property, including the Project located thereon, on or prior to the
date same is due, and said real estate taxes shall not become delinquent.
The DEVELOPER shall deliver evidence of payment of such real estate
taxes to the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT upon request.

The DEVELOPER agrees:

)1( to not, and shall not permit or allow any of its affiliates or
employees, to challenge, contest, or seek a reduction in, or assert
tax-exempt status in relation to, the real estate taxes assessed
against the Subject Property, including the Redevelopment Project
located thereon, below the Anticipated Assessed Values, as shown
on EXHIBIT C;

)2(  to prohibit any third party obligated to pay the real estate taxes, in
whole or in part, assessed against the Subject Property, including
the Project located thereon, or any portion thereof, from
challenging, contesting, seeking a reduction in or asserting tax-
exempt status in relation to the real estate taxes assessed against
the Subject Property, including the Redevelopment Project located
thereon, below the Anticipated Assessed Values, as shown on
EXHIBIT C; and

)3(  to not file, participate in, or allow any of its affiliates or employees to
file or participate in a tax rate objection, contest or other challenge
to the taxes and/or levies of the taxing districts authorized by law to
levy property taxes against the Subject Property, including the
Redevelopment Project located thereon, below the Anticipated
Assessed Values, as shown on EXHIBIT C.

The sole remedy to each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT, in the event
of a breach by DEVELOPER of its obligations in Subsection 4.B. above,
shall be for the DEVELOPER to pay to each of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT, on an annual basis, the difference between (1) the actual
real estate taxes payable with respect to the Subject Property, including
the Redevelopment Project located thereon, resulting from any such



successful challenge, contest, or reduction of or exemption from real
estate taxes assessed against the Subject Property, including the
Redevelopment Project located thereon, below the Anticipated Assessed
Values, as shown on EXHIBIT C, and (2) the lesser of (a) the amount of
real estate taxes that would have been due and owing on the Subject
Property, including the Redevelopment Project located thereon, for such
year, after the Tax Abatement for such year, had such successful
challenge contest, or reduction of or exemption from real estate taxes
assessed against the Subject Property not occurred, and (b) the amount
of real estate taxes that would have been due and owing on the
Anticipated Assessed Values for such year, after the Tax Abatement for
such year (said deficiency shall herein be referred to as the “Tax
Deficiency”) plus interest thereon at the prime rate charged by BMO Harris
Bank (or its successor) plus Three Percent (3%) per annum for the period
beginning on the date the real estate taxes are received by each of the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT for any given year and ending on the date the
Tax Deficiency is paid to each of the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT, which
shall be due within thirty (30) days of written notice from any one (1) of the
UNITS OF GOVERNMENT.

The DEVELOPER agrees to not pursue, permit or allow any of its affiliates
or employees to agree to, pursue or permit the disconnection or
detachment of the Subject Property from any of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT.

GENERAL CONDITIONS/REQUIREMENTS.

A.

397217_2

This Agreement is entered into for the benefit of each of the Parties,
solely, and not for the benefit of any third party.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any
privileges, defenses or immunities which the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT
may have under the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees
Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS 10/1-101, et seq., with respect to any claim
brought by a third party.

The obligations of the DEVELOPER shall constitute covenants running
with the land legally described in Exhibit A-1 and shall be binding on
successors and assigns of the DEVELOPER and shall bind all owners of
the Subject Property, including the Project located thereon, or any portion
thereof.

This Agreement, or a "Memorandum" of this Agreement, shall be recorded
on title to the Subject Property at the expense of the DEVELOPER upon
taking effect.



397217_2

Upon a breach of this Agreement by DEVELOPER, any of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT may repeal their respective Abatement Ordinance /
Resolution, and any Party, by an action or proceeding solely in equity
brought in the 18th Judicial Circuit Court, in DuPage County, lllinois, may
secure the specific performance of the covenants and agreements herein
contained, for failure of performance.

In the event of a default by any of the Parties, the defaulting Party, as
adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction, shall pay to the non-
defaulting Party / Parties, upon demand, all of the non-defaulting Party’s /
Parties’ reasonable costs, charges and expenses, including, but not
limited to, the costs of accountants, consultants, attorneys and others
retained by the non-defaulting Party / Parties for the purpose of enforcing
any of the obligations of the defaulting Party under this Agreement.

The failure of any Party to insist upon the strict and prompt performance of
the terms, covenants, agreements and conditions herein contained, or any
of them, by any other Party, shall not constitute or be construed as a
waiver or relinquishment of any Party’s right thereafter to enforce any such
term, covenant, agreement or condition, but the same shall continue in full
force and effect.

If the performance by any Party hereunder is delayed as a result of
circumstances which are beyond the reasonable control of such Party
(which circumstances shall only include acts of God, war, strikes or similar
acts of force majeure), the time for such performance shall be extended by
the amount of time of such delay.

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for fifteen (15) years
after the Commencement Date.

In the event that any UNIT OF GOVERNMENT's authority under the
Abatement Law to carry out its obligation in this Agreement is repealed,
becomes null and void or otherwise becomes invalid, then (i) such UNIT
OF GOVERNMENT’s obligations hereunder shall cease and no further
obligations of any sort shall be required of the UNIT OF GOVERNMENT,
and (ii) the DEVELOPER’s obligations to such UNIT OF GOVERNMENT
hereunder (including, without limitation, DEVELOPER’s obligations to
such UNIT OF GOVERNMENT under Section 3.B.) shall cease as of the
date on which any such UNIT OF GOVERNMENT'’s authority under the
Abatement Law to carry out its obligation in this Agreement is repealed,
becomes null and void or otherwise becomes invalid. The DEVELOPER
shall have no recourse against the affected UNIT OF GOVERNMENT(s)
in such event and such affected UNIT(s) OF GOVERNMENT shall have
no recourse against the DEVELOPER.

10



397217_2

No amendment to, or modification of, this Agreement shall be effective
unless and until it is in writing and approved by the authorized
representative of the DEVELOPER and by each of the UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT’s corporate authorities, and executed and delivered by
the authorized representatives of each Party.

If, during the term of this Agreement, any lawsuits or other proceedings
are filed or initiated against any Party before any court, commission,
board, bureau, agency, unit of government or sub-unit thereof, arbitrator,
or other instrumentality, that may materially affect or inhibit the ability of
any Party to perform its obligations under, or otherwise to comply with, this
Agreement (“Litigation”), the Party against which the Litigation is filed or
initiated shall promptly deliver a copy of the complaint or charge related
thereto to the other Parties and shall thereafter keep the other Parties fully
informed concerning all aspects of the Litigation. Each Party shall, to the
extent necessary, cooperate with the other Parties in this event. The
Parties each agree to use their respective best efforts to defend the
validity of this Agreement and the Abatement Ordinances / Resolutions
adopted pursuant to this Agreement, including every portion thereof and
every approval given, and every action taken, pursuant thereto.

The DEVELOPER shall and hereby agrees to defend, hold harmless and
indemnify the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT, and their respective elected
officials, appointed officials, employees, agents and attorneys (collectively
the “UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates”) from and against any and all
third-party claims, demands, suits, damages, liabilities, losses, expenses,
and judgments against any UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates resulting
from the DEVELOPER’s breach of its obligations hereunder. The
obligation of the DEVELOPER in this regard shall include, but shall not be
limited, to all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees,
incurred by the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates in responding to,
defending against, or settling any such claims, demands, suits, damages,
liabilities, losses, expenses or judgments. The DEVELOPER covenants
that it will reimburse the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates, or pay over
to the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates, all sums of money the UNITS
OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates pays, or becomes liable to pay to any such
third party, by reason of any of the foregoing; provided, however, that the
DEVELOPER’s liability under this Section 5.M. shall be limited to the total
amount of Tax Abatement that the DEVELOPER has been received
pursuant to this Agreement as of the date of any such claim, demand, suit,
damage, liability, loss, expense, or judgment. In any suit or proceeding
brought hereunder, the UNITS OF GOVERNMENT Affiliates shall have
the right to appoint counsel of their own choosing to represent it, the
reasonable costs and expenses of which shall be paid by the
DEVELOPER.

11



N. The DEVELOPER shall maintain the Subject Property, and operate the
Project, in compliance with all Federal, State, County, and UNITS OF
GOVERNMENT laws, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations.

6. NOTICES. Notice or other writings which any Party is required to, or may wish
to, serve upon any other Party in connection with this Agreement shall be in

writing and shall be delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail,

return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

A. Iftothe CITY:

City of West Chicago

475 Main Street

West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: Mayor

With copies to:

City of West Chicago

475 Main Street

West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: City Administrator

Bond, Dickson & Associates
400 Knoll Street

Wheaton, lllinois 60187
Attn: Patrick Bond

397217_2

12

B. If to the LIBRARY:

West Chicago Library District
118 West Washington Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: President

With copies to:

West Chicago Library District
118 West Washington Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: Executive Director

Peregrine, Stime, Newman,
Ritzman, & Bruckner, Ltd.
221 East lllinois Street
Wheaton, lllinois 60187
Attn: Mark Ritzman



C. If to the ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
DISTRICT:

West Chicago Elementary
School District 33

312 East Forest Avenue
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: President

With copies to:

West Chicago Elementary
School District 33

312 East Forest Avenue
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: Superintendent

Robbins Schwartz

55 W. Monroe Street, Suite 800
Chicago, lllinois 60603

Attn: Kenneth M. Florey

E. If to the DUPAGE AIRPORT
AUTHORITY:

DuPage Airport Authority

2700 International Drive, Suite 200
West Chicago, lllinois 60185

Attn: Chairman

With copies to

DuPage Airport Authority

2700 International Drive, Suite 200
West Chicago, lllinois 60185

Attn: Executive Director

Schirott, Luetkehans & Garner, LLC
105 E. Irving Park Rd.

Itasca, lllinois 60143

Attn: Phillip A. Luetkehans

397217_2 13

D. If to the HIGH SCHOOL
DISTRICT:

Community High School
District 94

157 West Washington Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: President

With copies to:

Community High School
District 94

157 West Washington Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: Superintendent

Hauser, |zzo, Petrarca, Gleason
& Stillman, LLC

19730 Governors Hwy, Suite 10
Flossmor, lllinois 60422

Attn: John Izzo

F. If to the DEVELOPER:

Ball Horticultural Company
622 Town Road

West Chicago, IL 60185
Attn: Todd Frauendorfer

With a copy to:

Ice Miller

2300 Cabot Drive, Suite 455
Lisle, IL 60532-4613

Attn: Michael Roth



G. If to the FIRE PROTECTION H. If to the PARK DISTRICT:

DISTRICT:

West Chicago Fire Protection District West Chicago Park District
200 Freemont Street 201 W. National Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185 West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: President Attn: President

With copies to: With copies to:

West Chicago Fire Protection District West Chicago Park District
200 Freemont Street 201 W. National Street
West Chicago, lllinois 60185 West Chicago, lllinois 60185
Attn: Fire Chief Attn: Executive Director
Ottosen Britz Kelly Cooper Gilbert

& DiNolfo, Ltd.

1804 N. Naper Boulevard #350

Naperville, lllinois 60563 Attn:

Attn: Joseph Miller

or to such other address, or additional individuals/entities, as any Party may from
time to time designate in a written notice to the other Parties. Service by personal
delivery shall be deemed given when delivery occurs, and service by certified or
registered mail shall be deemed given three (3) days after depositing same in the
mail.

y & COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in up to

eight (8) counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which
shall constitute one and the same Agreement.

8. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire understanding

between the Parties and supersedes any prior understanding or written or oral
agreements between them regarding the within subject matter. There are no
representations, agreements, arrangements or understandings, oral or written,

between and among the Parties hereto relating to the subject matter of this

397217_2 14



Agreement which are not fully expressed herein.

9. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall be deemed dated and become

effective on the date the last of the Parties executes this Agreement as set forth

below, which date shall be filled in on page 1 hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY, pursuant to authority granted by the
adoption of a Motion/Resolution by its City Council, has caused this Agreement to be
executed by its Mayor and attested by its Clerk; the AIRPORT, pursuant to authority
granted by the adoption of a Motion/Resolution by its Board of Commissioners, has
caused this Agreement to be signed by its Chairman and attested by its Secretary; the
LIBRARY, pursuant to the authority granted by the adoption of a Motion/Resolution by
its Board of Trustees, has caused this Agreement to be signed by its President and
attested by its Secretary; the FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, pursuant to the authority
granted by the adoption of a Motion/Resolution by its Board of Trustees, has caused
this Agreement to be signed by its President and attested by its Secretary; the
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, pursuant to the authority granted by the adoption
of a Motion/Resolution by its Board of Education, has caused this Agreement to be
signed by its President and attested by its Secretary; the HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT,
pursuant to the authority granted by the adoption of a Motion/Resolution by its Board of
Education, has caused this Agreement to be signed by its President and attested by its
Secretary; the PARK DISTRICT, pursuant to the authority granted by the adoption of a
Motion/Resolution by its Board of Commissioners, has caused this Agreement to be
signed by its President and attested by its Secretary; and DEVELOPER, pursuant to

proper authority granted in accordance with its organizational documents, has caused

397217_2 15



this Agreement to be executed by its President and attested by its Secretary.

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO
By:
, Mayor
ATTEST:
, City Clerk
Dated:
WEST CHICAGO ELEMENTARY
SCHOOL DISTRICT 33
By:
, President
ATTEST:
, Secretary
Dated:
DUPAGE AIRPORT AUTHORITY
By:
, Chairman
ATTEST:
, Secretary
Dated:

397217_2

16

WEST CHICAGO PUBLIC LIBRARY
DISTRICT

By:
, President
ATTEST:
, Secretary
Dated:

WEST CHICAGO COMMUNITY HIGH

SCHOOL DISTRICT 94
By:
, President
ATTEST:
, Secretary
Dated:

BALL HORTICULTURAL COMPANY

By:
Todd Frauendorfer, Treasurer

ATTEST:

Dated:




WEST CHICAGO FIRE PROTECTION WEST CHICAGO PARK DISTRICT
DISTRICT

By: By:

, President , President
ATTEST: ATTEST:

, Secretary , Secretary
Dated: Dated:

397217_2 17



STATE OF ILLINOIS (
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE  (

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ;
personally known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of West Chicago, and
also known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the
foregoing instrument as such Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, appeared before me
this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such Mayor and City Clerk, they
signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to authority given by the City of
West Chicago, as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and
deed of said City of West Chicago, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of ,
2018.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

397217_2 18



STATE OF ILLINOIS (
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE  (

[, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ,
personally known to me to be the President and Secretary of the West Chicago Public
Library District, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are
subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such President and Secretary, respectively,
appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such
President and Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to
authority given by the West Chicago Public Library District, as their free and voluntary
act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said West Chicago Public Library
District, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of ,
2018.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

397217_2 19



STATE OF ILLINOIS (
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE  (

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ,
personally known to me to be the President and Secretary of the West Chicago Fire
Protection District, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are
subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such President and Secretary, respectively,
appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such
President and Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to
authority given by the West Chicago Fire Protection District, as their free and voluntary
act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said West Chicago Fire Protection
District, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of ,
2018.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

397217_2 20



STATE OF ILLINOIS (
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE  (

|, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ,
personally known to me to be the President and Secretary of the West Chicago
Elementary School District 33, and also known to me to be the same persons whose
names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such President and Secretary,
respectively, appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that,
as such President and Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument,
pursuant to authority given by the West Chicago Elementary School District 33, as their
free and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said West Chicago
Elementary School District 33, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of ,
2018.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

397217 2 21



STATE OF ILLINOIS (
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE

|, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ;
personally known to me to be the President and Secretary of the West Community High
School District 94, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are
subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such President and Secretary, respectively,
appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such
President and Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to
authority given by the West Chicago Community High School District 94, as their free
and voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act and deed of said West Chicago
Community High School District 94, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of ;

2018.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

397217_2 22



STATE OF ILLINOIS (
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE  (

[, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ,
personally known to me to be the Chairman and Secretary of the DuPage Airport
Authority, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed
to the foregoing instrument as such Chairman and Secretary, respectively, appeared
before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such Chairman and
Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to authority given
by the DuPage Airport Authority, as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and
voluntary act and deed of said DuPage Airport Authority, for the uses and purposes

therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of ,
2018.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

397217_2 23



STATE OF ILLINOIS (
) SS
COUNTY OF DUPAGE  (

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named and ,
personally known to me to be the President and Secretary of the West Chicago Park
District, and also known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to
the foregoing instrument as such President and Secretary, respectively, appeared
before me this day in person and severally acknowledged that, as such President and
Secretary, they signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to authority given
by the West Chicago Park District, as their free and voluntary act, and as the free and
voluntary act and deed of said West Chicago Park District, for the uses and purposes
therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of ,
2018.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

397217_2 24



STATE OF (
COUNTY OF (

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for the County and State aforesaid,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the above-named Todd Frauendorfer, personally known to
me to be the Treasurer of the Ball Horticultural Company, and also known to me to be
the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing instrument as such
Todd Frauendorfer, appeared before me this day in person and severally acknowledged
that, as such Treasurer, he signed and delivered the signed instrument, pursuant to
authority given by Ball Horticultural Company, as his free and voluntary act, and as the
free and voluntary act and deed of said Ball Horticultural Company, for the uses and
purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notary Seal, this day of .
2018.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

397217_2 25



EXHIBIT A-1

Subject Property Identification and Legal Descriptions

Common Addresses:

622 Town Road
West Chicago, lllinois 60185

and also identified as

1017 Roosevelt Road
West Chicago, lllinois 60185

Parcel Index Numbers:

04-09-301-007
04-09-301-008
04-09-301-009
04-09-301-010
04-09-301-011
04-09-301-012
04-09-301-013

PART OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 9,
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN
WINFIELD TOWNSHIP, DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND FURTHER DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE BURLINGTON
NORTHERN SANTA FE RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY AND THE WESTERN RIGHT-
OF-WAY OF TOWN ROAD, SOUTHERLY ALONG THE WESTERN RIGHT-OF-WAY
OF TOWN ROAD A DISTANCE OF 2,340.22 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY (AT AN
INTERNAL ANGLE OF 91 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 23 SECONDS) A DISTANCE OF
62424 FEET TO THE NORTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF ROOSEVELT ROAD;
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF
ROOSEVELT ROAD A DISTANCE OF 455.27 FEET TO THE EASTERN PROPERTY
LINE OF THE COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY TRANSMISSION CORRIDOR;
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY
TRANSMISSION CORRIDOR PROPERTY LINE A DISTANCE OF 1,499.06 FEET;
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHERN RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE
BURLINGTON NORTHERN & SANTA FE RAILWAY A DISTANCE OF 1,065.72 FEET
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

397217_2 26



Parcel Index Numbers:

04-16-100-004
04-16-100-005

THAT PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 16,
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF ROOSEVELT ROAD
AS WIDENED BY CONDEMNATION CASE 81ED-21, IN DUPAGE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

Parcel Index Number:
04-09-308-023

LOTS 13 THROUGH 22 IN. BLOCK 5 AND LOTS 4, 5, 6, AND 7 IN BLOCK 4, ALL IN
ALTA VISTA GARDENS, A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST HALF OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED JUNE 8, 1927 AS DOCUMENT 237267, IN DUPAGE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS. THAT PART OF VACATED STIMMEL STREET LYING SOUTH OF AND
ADJOINING LOT SEVEN IN BLOCK 4 AND NORTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT 22 IN
BLOCK 5 AND BETWEEN LINES DRAWN FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF
SAID LOT 7 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 22 AND FROM THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 7 TO THE NORTH EAST CORNER OF SOUTH
LOT 22, ALL IN ALTA VISTA GARDENS, A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE EAST
HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH.,
RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT
THEREOF RECORDED JUNE 8, 1927 AS DOCUMENT 237267, IN DUPAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, SAID PORTIONS OF STREET HAVING BEEN VACATED BY
ORDINANCE PASSED AND APPROVED NOVEMBER 17, 1958 A COPY OF WHICH
WAS RECORDED APRIL 26, 1961 AS DOCUMENT R61-4306, IN DUPAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

Parcel Index Numbers:

04-08-402-005
04-09-301-001

THAT PART OF SECTIONS 8 AND 9, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH. RANGE 9 EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNNG AT THE
POINT OF INTERSECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 8 WITH THE
CENTER LINE OF ROOSEVELT ROAD (SAID CENTERLINE BEING A LINE 50.0

397217 2 27



FEET NORTHERLY AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID ROAD
AS WIDENED AND RELOCATED BY PLAT OF DEDICATION RECORDED AUGUST
24, 19.32 AS DOCUMENT 328847) AND RUNNING THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ON
SAID CENTERLINE ON A CURVE 70 THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 3203.32
FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 552.58 FEET, TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF
ADRIAN'S SUBDIVISION (PLAT DOCUMENT R81-48534) THENCE NORTH 00
DECREES 51 MINUTES EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID ADRIAN'S
SUBDIVISION AND ALSO PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION
491.71 FEET TO THE SOUTEASTERLY LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE
CHICAGO. BURLINGTON AND QUINCY RAILROAD, SAID PONT ALSO BEING THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID ADRIAN'S SUBDIVISION THENCE NORTH 58
DEGREES 38 MINUTES EAST ON SAD LINE 687.95 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF
THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF THE COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY (FORMALLY
PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY) AS DESCRIBED IN DEED RECORDED SEPTEMBER
23, 1926 AS DOCUMENT 221874; THENCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES 56 MINUTES
WEST ON SAID WEST LINE OF THE COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY
RIGHT-OF-WAY 599.35 FEET TO AN ANGLE AND SAID WEST LINE; AND
CONTINUING ON SAID WEST LINE SOUTH 05 DEGREES 08 MINUTES WEST
281.11 FEET TO A JOG WEST IN SAID THE COMMONWEALTH EDISON COMPANY
RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 30 MINUTES WEST 74.0 FEET TO
THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 51 MINUTES
WEST ON SAID SECTION LINE 274.94 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,
(EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE SOUTHWEST 60 FEET AS MEASURED RADIAL
AND NORMAL TO THE CENTERLINE OF ROOSEVELT ROAD TAKEN FOR ROAD
PURPOSES BY CONDEMNATION CASE 81 ED 18), IN THE CITY OF WEST
CHICAGO, DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

397217 2 28



EXHIBIT A-2
Depictions of Subject Property Parcels

(attached)

397217_2 29



397217_2

04-08-402-005

FETTTYTTR

|

111

30



04-09-301-001

1 7 o A o v e g e

397217_2 31



04-09-301-007

.xl

MErce

~

32

397217_2



04-09-301-008

397217_2 33



397217_2

04-09-301-009

------




3972172

04-09-301-010

TrrwayoTe

Fim il

35

=



04-09-301-011

397217_2 36



